

# PERFORMANCE REPORT

PERFORMANCE RESULTS
FISCAL YEAR 2018

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Introduction	3
Department Overview	4
Mission, Vision, Values and Culture of the Iowa Department for the Blind	4
Mission Statement	4
Vision Statement	4
Value Statements	4
Our Culture	5
Core Functions	5
1. Vocational Rehabilitation	5
2. Independent Living(IL)	6
3. Library for the Blind and Physically Handicapped	8
Customers and Stakeholders	8
Organizational Structure	9
Location	9
Number of Staff	9
Budget	9
Agency Performance Plan Results	10
Core Function: Vocational Rehabilitation & Indepndent Living Services	10
Core Function: Library Services	14
Core Function: Resource Management	16
Agency Contacts	17
Derformance Plan for FV2019	10

## **INTRODUCTION**

I am pleased to present the performance report for the Iowa Department for the Blind (IDB) for fiscal year 2018. This report is provided in compliance with sections 7E.3, 8E.210, and 216B.7 of the Code of Iowa. It contains information about the results achieved during the past fiscal year due to the services provided by the Iowa Department for the Blind.

The Workforce Innovation and Opportunities Act (WIOA) mandates that we devote 15% of our federal vocational rehabilitation funding to provide pre-employment transition services to youth ages 14-21. We have continued to expand our summer teen program, expanded braille literacy initiatives, hired more vocational rehabilitation teachers to work with blind youth in their home communities, and worked with our WIOA partners to improve access for our clients to Iowa Works employment services. Our vocational rehabilitation counselors continue to be active participants in local workforce Disability Access Committees and engage with our core and required partners. We expanded our support for post-secondary education for our clients. We now cover the expenses between what is covered by financial aid and 95% of the total bill. We whole heartedly agree with the Governor's assertion that post-secondary education and training are critically important for career success and we want to remove any barriers that may prevent our clients from being a part of the future ready workforce that her efforts are creating.

Our Independent Living Program has completed the roll out of the cluster based service delivery model that we developed with assistance from the Older Individuals Who Are Blind Technical Assistance Center (OIB-TAC). Utilizing this model state wide will continue to improve client objective achievement. We have also focused on teaching sustainable, non-visual skills and providing aids and devices that can continue to be used by clients as they lose more vision. This reduces costs and will, over time, reduce the number of clients needing to return to us for further services. We have prepared to create a new support group in Des Moines based on a very successful program in Colorado. We are planning to test this program in 2019 and expand use of this model into other parts of the state in fiscal year 2020.

The IDB's orientation center continues to prepare students to participate in vocational training programs and pursue gainful employment by offering comprehensive blindness training to vocational rehabilitation clients. We have hired a careers and life skills instructor to ensure that clients leave the center with a plan for continuing their education or obtaining employment. The Orientation Center is continuing to partner with Independent Living staff to host week-long trainings for IL clients. This partnership allows teachers to stay in the field and serve other clients and improve efficiency. The center has also expanded its provision of continuing education to field trainers in order to ensure that all clients receive the highest quality training possible.

While we are pleased with the progress that has been achieved, we must continuously reevaluate all aspects of our performance to ensure that outstanding service is being provided to all blind lowans.

As we move forward, the IDB will continue to respond to needs expressed by blind lowans and we will strive to develop innovative programs to empower them to secure gainful employment and live independently.

Emily Wharton, Director

Iowa Department for the Blind

#### **DEPARTMENT OVERVIEW**

The lowa Department for the Blind is the state agency charged with providing vocational rehabilitation, independent living, library, and other essential services to Iowans who are blind so that they can live independently and work competitively. The policies and procedures of the Department are based on state and federal law, including chapters 216B, 216C, and 216D of the *Code of Iowa*, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, and the Randolph-Sheppard Act.

# MISSION, VISION, VALUES AND CULTURE OF THE IOWA DEPARTMENT FOR THE BLIND

#### Mission Statement

Empower blind lowans to be gainfully employed and live independently.

#### **VISION STATEMENT**

To be the world's leader in blind rehabilitation services.

#### **VALUE STATEMENTS**

#### We value blind lowans therefore:

- We believe in each individual's ability to be independent
- We act with a sense of urgency and responsiveness in serving every individual
- We support each individual's right to informed choices
- We value engagement and independence for individuals of all ages
- We promote a positive attitude toward blindness
- We expect blind persons to achieve their full potential
- We provide opportunities for blind persons to be fully contributing members of their communities

#### All staff are valued and expected to demonstrate:

- Passion for what we do every day
- Commitment to make positive differences in the lives of blind Iowans
- Respect for the contributions of each staff member
- Ethical behavior, honesty, integrity and trustworthiness
- Innovative and proactive approaches in serving each client.

- Progressive and professional leadership
- Collaboration and teamwork that benefits each individual we serve
- Collaboration with community, local, state, and federal partners

#### **OUR CULTURE**

We use a client-centric approach to empower clients to achieve successful outcomes.

## **CORE FUNCTIONS**

The Department's three major service areas are vocational rehabilitation (VR), independent living (IL), and the library for the blind and physically handicapped.

# 1. VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION

The VR program assists lowans who are blind in preparing for, obtaining, and retaining employment. Applicants are made eligible based upon their visual disability, their need for VR services, and their intent to work. The VR counselor and the eligible individual jointly identify an employment goal and the services needed to achieve it.

**KEY SERVICES AND PRODUCTS:** Services may include:

- Training to help individuals achieve the vocational goals they have selected such as vocational training or postsecondary education.
- Job placement services. VR counselors help job seekers develop job-search plans, write résumés, practice interviewing, and locate job and placement resources.
- Rehabilitation technology services. Through such services as job site assessment, procurement of assistive technology, and training in the use of adaptive equipment, blind employees can perform their jobs competitively and efficiently.
- Post-employment follow-up. After individuals have achieved their employment goals, VR counselors can continue to serve as a resource to both employees and employers.

VR staff members also participate in outreach activities, such as:

- Participation in job fairs, technology expos, and speakers' bureaus.
- Provision of information on the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA); job site assessments and accommodations information, and referral to appropriate vendors.
- Partnership with other employment programs to facilitate the recruitment of qualified blind employees.

• Advice on assistive technology to public agencies and employers so that technology available to the general public is also accessible to blind persons.

**DELIVERY MECHANISMS FOR PROVIDING SERVICES:** The VR counselors travel statewide to provide guidance and counseling to blind lowans to ensure they get the training and services they need to reach their employment goals.

The adult orientation center is a residential training program for clients of the VR program. Located in Des Moines, the center provides in-depth blindness skills training to students so that they can return to their home communities to live independently and work competitively. Students receive training in four areas: 1) development of self-confidence; 2) blindness skills, including cane travel, home and personal management, industrial arts, Braille, and computer; 3) job readiness; and 4) public education.

The Department's business enterprises program (BEP) provides opportunities for legally blind clients of the VR program to manage their own vending and snack bar businesses located throughout lowa in public and private buildings and at rest areas along interstate highways.

Finally, VR staff work with a variety of suppliers of goods and services. The Department purchases direct services for our clients from educational and training institutions, community rehabilitation programs (CRPs), medical service providers, and others. The Department also works with assistive technology developers and vendors who produce equipment many of the Department's clients require to achieve their goals.

# 2. INDEPENDENT LIVING (IL)

The IL program provides services to lowans who are blind or have significant vision loss and are 55 or older or who are blind or have significant vision loss under the age of 55 years with multiple disabilities to help them live more independently in their homes and live productively within their communities in all 99 counties of lowa. Eligibility criteria must be met to qualify for program services. When an individual is eligible for program service and it is found that due to significant needs in an area of IL, and where the individual chooses not to participate in Vocational Rehabilitation, and where there is a reasonable expectation the individuals will benefit from IL program services, the individual may be served under this program.

**KEY SERVICES AND PRODUCTS:** To prevent the premature institutionalization of blind lowans, the IL program staff may refer individuals accordingly to other program services that will optimize IL training outcomes or will directly provide the following service or products: adjustment to blindness counseling and guidance, mobility and orientation skills training, communications skills training, assistive technology skills training, daily living skills training, leisure skills training, public transportation options training, self-care training, self-direction training, interpersonal skills training, information and referral, and group training such as Community-Based training, and IL Senior Orientation-Integration. In addition, individuals served will be referred to blind lowa consumer and support groups where they can receive peer advocacy and support as needed or desired.

**DELIVERY MECHANISMS FOR PROVIDING SERVICES:** There are three basic service models to provide IL services.

#### Regional Cluster Service Training (RCST) Model

In 2017, an RCST Model was piloted in Iowa then fully implemented in 2018. Through implementation of this model IL staff provides individualized or group IL skills training over a period of three to four consecutive weeks within each

identified service area/region or regional cluster. Sessions within the region may be repeated if needed with the next service delivery cycle or cycles to ensure the individual(s) served are able to:

- 1. Retain the information between training or service visits;
- 2. increased achievement in their training objectives in a shorter period of time; and
- 3. increased satisfaction by use of this service delivery model.

In addition, this model is being monitored to determine the effectiveness of contributions made toward managing finite program human and financial resources as well.

## **Community-Based Training (CBT)**

A CBT is generally a six-hour group training (i.e. one day or split into two-three hour sessions) that provides lowans experiencing vision loss or who are blind an opportunity to learn basic non-visual IL disability-related skills. The hands-on training is geared to boost individual self-confidence and often inspires participants to learn more. A CBT scheduled for less than six hours of training requires program administration approval.

Finally, the CBT provides participants with an opportunity to meet with other lowans who are blind or who are losing their vision; gives them the opportunity to exchange information with each other as well as share experiences, and provides opportunity for participants to learn from one another.

#### **Independent Living (IL) Senior Orientation Integration**

IL Senior Orientation Integration is a group training model sponsored by the Iowa Department for the Blind's Adult Adjustment & Orientation Center (OC) and in partnership with the IL program. While somewhat similar to the Senior Orientation (SO) model, there are subtle differences. Some of the differences and benefits are summed up as follows:

- 1. Where available, each IL program client is assigned to an OC student who has demonstrated they are a positive role model and are willing to share their positive attitude about blindness with others;
- 2. Through the week long OC training exposure, IL clients have an opportunity to consider the Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) and Orientation Center (OC) program training and services; and
- 3. Provides addition opportunity for IL clients to network other blind students; those who use OC services as well as to attend an integrated training session of the Business of Blindness class. This opportunity helps to broaden each participating IL client's prospective related to skills and attitudes of blindness.

This program also frees up IL program human resources to allow most IL division staff to remain working in the field while program services are delivered primarily by OC staff.

In the event that Senior Integration (SI) is not available, Senior Orientation (SO) will be made available. This program, while similar to SI, has the availability to host one week of training for program clients at the Department in Des Moines. It is designed primarily for individuals age 55+. Clients are given the opportunity to meet others who are going through similar experiences as a result of vision loss or blindness. Clients travel to Des Moines and spend a week which is devoted to learning and building non-visual skills that will help them adjust to their vision loss/blindness and build their confidence. IL division staff plan, coordinate, and deliver these program services related to this training model.

## 3. LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND AND PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED

The library provides reading materials free of charge to lowans who cannot use standard print because of blindness, physical disability, or reading disability.

**KEY SERVICES AND PRODUCTS:** The library circulates books and magazines in digital media, in Braille, and in large print to eligible borrowers throughout Iowa. The library maintains a collection of over 88,000 book titles and makes available to its borrowers over 150 different magazines. Because the library is a cooperating member of the National Library Service for the Blind and Physically Handicapped (NLS) of the Library of Congress, its borrowers have access to all NLS services.

#### **DELIVERY MECHANISMS FOR PROVIDING SERVICES:** The library:

- Transcribes print materials into Braille and audio formats. Employment-related, educational, and leisure materials not already available in alternative media are transcribed for the collection and upon request.
- Assists Iowa students with their textbook, research, and career needs through the library's Instructional Material Center.
- Maintains a career resource center which houses career related books and employment guides in a variety of
  formats. The center also has a computer equipped with adaptive technology that allows clients to research and
  apply for jobs on-line.
- Provides independent access to the library's collection through the web-based on-line public access catalog (OPAC). The OPAC allows borrowers to search the collection and select and reserve books.
- Maintains digital playback machines and digital devices for borrowers to listen to recorded media.

## **CUSTOMERS AND STAKEHOLDERS**

The Department's primary customers are blind and severely visually impaired Iowans who have very specialized needs that cannot be met elsewhere. Referrals of persons who need the Department's services come in many forms and from many sources, including from individuals themselves, relatives and friends, the library, doctors and other health and community service providers, schools, institutions, and other agencies.

In developing the Department's programs and policies, we actively seek input from advisory councils, consumer organizations of the blind, individual blind persons, and blind staff who also make up part of the customer base. Two of the three members of the policy-making Commission for the Blind are blind. Knowledgeable and politically active, the Department's customers are highly interested in the agency's policies, procedures, and practices. They support the Department's culture and participate in strategic planning.

The library also serves individuals and institutions such as the physically disabled and reading disabled, blind residents of nursing homes, campus offices for disabled students, restaurants, and others who need materials in alternative media. Through the VR program, the Department serves such customers as area education agencies and employers, and through the IL program, the Department provides in-service training to group homes, senior centers, and other community organizations.

# **ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE**

The Department is part of the executive branch of state government. It operates under the lowa Commission for the Blind consisting of members appointed by the governor. The commission is 100% consumer controlled. Pursuant to chapter 216B of the *Code of Iowa*, the commission has authority to set policy and review all major components of the Department's programs. The commission hires the department director. The director reports directly to the commission and the governor.

#### LOCATION

The Department is located in a six-story building at 524 4<sup>th</sup> Street in Des Moines. The building is accessible to people with disabilities.

#### NUMBER OF STAFF

On June 30, 2018, the Department had 58, permanent, full-time employees and 12 employees in temporary employment status. Twelve of the permanent full-time staff are domiciled at various other locations. Employees work in the areas of administration, service provision, and support. Contract workers were covered by the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) collective bargaining agreement through June 30, 2018. The Department also relies heavily on volunteers to satisfy staffing needs.

#### BUDGET

Operations of the Department are financed primarily through general fund appropriations from the Iowa General Assembly and formula grants from the U.S. Department of Education. The budget relies heavily on federal matching funds.

## AGENCY PERFORMANCE PLAN RESULTS

#### CORE FUNCTION: VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION & INDEPENDENT LIVING SERVICES

**Description:** The Department provides vocational rehabilitation services to assist lowans who are blind in preparing for, obtaining, and retaining employment. The desired outcome for all vocational rehabilitation clients is that they will achieve competitive integrated employment that aligns with their individual strengths, interests, priorities and needs. Our team works to remove barriers that prevent a person who is blind from working, to guide and counselor clients to develop employment goals, and to network with employers on behalf of persons who are blind. Clients receive a wide variety of services including assessment, training, rehabilitation technology services, and job placement services. In addition, the lowa Department for the Blind provides a number of services to employers and partner agencies to assist with not only creating opportunities for clients, but also to help meet lowa's workforce needs.

Why we are doing this: To increase the productivity and independence of blind lowans.

What we're doing to achieve results: Vocational rehabilitation staff have provided assessments, training, guidance and counseling, referrals, employer assistance, job placement, rehabilitation technology services, post-employment follow-up, and coordination of community services to eligible individuals. In addition, the Department staff has served on Regional Workforce Boards, provided a range of services to businesses and partner agencies, and participates in Employment First initiatives. The Iowa Department for the Blind counselors have been actively collaborating with partners and employers to connect clients to opportunities to achieve competitive, integrated employment.

Key	Resu	Its

Performance Measure	Target	Result
Ratio of average VR wage to average state wage as a percentage.	80%	73%
Competitive employment outcomes as a percentage of all employment outcomes.	85%	100%

What Happened: The Department sets an aggressive target for the ratio of average VR wage to state wage measure, as we believe in assisting blind lowans in obtaining employment that is on par with individuals who do not have disabilities. The wage ratio fell short of the 2018 target with clients closed in employment achieving wages somewhat less than average wages for all workers in Iowa. During FY18, the average hourly earnings for a client of the Department was \$15.72 per hour and the individuals worked an average of 28.44 hours per week.

Due to its belief in the capabilities of blind lowans, the Department exceeded the target set for the percentage of VR cases closing in competitive employment. For some clients, attaining an outcome of "homemaker" after receiving skills training is appropriate. However, the Department strives to achieve employment outcomes where the VR client is working for competitive wages. This objective is reflected in the results.

Data source: The Department's case management system.

**Resources:** The lowa Department for the Blind is funded through a combination of 78.7% federal funds and is matched with 21.3% of non-federal funds that are required to generate the federal funding. State appropriation for FY18 was \$2,167, 622.

#### Services / Products / Activities of Vocational Rehabilitation and Independent Living Services Core Function

**Product:** VR Services

**Description:** The Department seeks to achieve a quantity and quality of employment outcomes for blind lowans consistent with the standards set by the federal Rehabilitation Services Administration. The Department achieves this through vocational rehabilitation services for blind and visually impaired adults and transition age youth.

#### Results

Performance Measure	Target	Result
Percentage of closures with an employment outcome after receiving services.	80%	50%
Percentage of transition age youth who obtain work experience prior to graduation from high school	75%	86%

What Happened: The percentage of clients achieving their competitive employment goals in 2018 ("status 26") was 50% percent. The target for the percentage was not met for the state performance plan. The average hourly earnings for a person who is blind placed into competitive and integrated employment by the lowa Department for the Blind was \$15.72/hour. The percentage of VR case closures that result in an employment outcome depends on job availability and client skills and experience. During fiscal year 2018, the lowa Department for the Blind has continued to see an increase in the number of individuals with the most significant disabilities, requiring new strategies and partners to be developed so that clients are able to increase skills and develop appropriate work experience to be competitive. We are developing and providing trainings to community rehabilitation partners and state partners to ensure that individuals who are blind receive quality services so that they can meet their employment goals. The Department continues to work on job development methods and continually seeks new techniques to improve employment outcomes, particularly for those clients who have experienced difficulty obtaining employment due to a weak work history, lack of skills, or secondary disabilities. In addition, we have had a number of individuals over the past year exit services and choosing to continue supporting themselves through public benefits. As a result, the Department will be providing benefits counseling training to several counselors and employment specialists to ensure that individuals understand the choices they are making with regard to their benefits and employment. The Department's aim is that through skillful counseling and motivation, fewer clients will lose interest in working.

The percentage of transition age youth who obtained work experience prior to graduation from high school was 86%, exceeding the target of 75%. The Department's vocational rehabilitation counselors collaborate

with schools, community rehabilitation providers, and employers to assist students who are blind or have low vision to obtain work experience before graduating from high school. The lowa Department for the Blind provides targeted pre-employment transition services and other transition services to students who are between the ages of 14 and 21 (until they turn 22). Services include opportunities for peer interaction, mentoring and confidence building activities, independent living skills training, and work based learning experiences. Students are also offered job exploration counseling, workplace readiness skills, counseling on opportunities for post-secondary education and training, and self-advocacy skills training. Through these services, the lowa Department for the Blind is able to assist youth in gaining the nonvisual skills they need to be successful in post-secondary environments and build a positive attitude about blindness while raising their own expectations about what choices they have as they plan their futures.

**Activity:** Adult Orientation and Adjustment Training

**Description:** The orientation center is a residential blindness training program available to vocational rehabilitation clients of the Iowa Department for the Blind. It provides in-depth, individualized blindness training to those with significant vision loss aged 17 and older so they can return to their home communities confidently equipped to work competitively and live independently.

#### Results

Performance Measure	Target	Result
Results on skills and attitude assessments for students who have completed orientation center training.	85%	100%

What Happened: There were only eight surveys completed during FY18. With smaller sample sizes, when someone has a different response, this carries more change than it would with a larger sampling. Nineteen students were in the orientation center during fiscal year 2018. Nine of these students began their center training in fiscal year 2018. Although some students had to leave the program early due to health or family issues, others have returned to work, are looking for employment, or pursuing higher education. For example, one is working in transition, one is completing training in the Business Enterprise Program, and several others are working on college degrees. Instead of consuming tax dollars, these individuals are or will soon be paying taxes and contributing their talents to the benefit of lowa.

Eleven transition students participated in the LEAP program, which was also housed in the Orientation Center for the summer. These students worked on daily living skills as well as got a chance to focus on the skills of blindness; such as travel with the long white cane, braille, computers, home management and industrial arts.

**Service:** Business Enterprises Program

**Description:** The business enterprises program (BEP) provides opportunities for legally blind vocational rehabilitation clients of the Iowa Department for the Blind to manage their own businesses -- operating vending machines, road side vending sites, or snack bar/catering services. These businesses are in federal, state, county, municipal, and private locations throughout Iowa.

#### Results

Performance Measure	Target	Result
Average net income to vendors	\$55,000	\$65,480

What Happened: The number of blind managers, 16, has changed during this reporting period. Two managers entered the program and one manager left the program during this time frame. The average income per manager was up in 2018 due to a variety of factors including decreased operating costs and having three managers running multiple locations. Managers continue to use creative methods to deal with current economic realities, including switching to items with a greater margin of profit, and keeping prices in line with nearby competition. Increased marketing and responding to customer demands for different products continues. Healthy vending and additional food service options also remain in the forefront in our industry. We have continued to install cashless vending payment options in our facilities as our budget has allowed. The results have been positive overall and have shown a need for credit card based payment options in our rest areas. Customer demands for cashless payment options are changing rapidly, and our involvement in this arena will have to increase. Over the past year our program has not expanded. Managers continue to explore locations in the private sector. This can increase their bottom line, visibility, and shows self-motivation and initiative. We have had three trainees in the past year, with one receiving their license. The need to find increased opportunities for locations is paramount. When the opportunities come forth, the recruits will continue to follow. Decreased income in the program in prior years has motivated managers to successfully streamline their businesses, and become more efficient in maintaining profit. Our managers realize that it is essential to work hard to maintain their margins and control costs to make them profitable. Locations continue to be combined as needed due to economy of scale, which affects all businesses. Managers and staff continuously seek business opportunities and candidates for our program as we move forward.

**Product:** Education and Outreach

**Description:** The Department engages in a variety of outreach activities to promote the Department's services, generate referrals to the Department, and to educate service providers and the general public, including newly blind persons, regarding the capabilities of persons who are blind.

#### Results

Performance Measure	Target	Result
Number of in-service training sessions conducted for community service providers.	15	10

What Happened: The Department uses a variety of strategies to inform the public about the Department's services and to educate the public about the capabilities of blind lowans. In addition to traditional outreach efforts, the Department conducted in-service training to in-home health providers, staff at community rehabilitation programs, and staff at long-term care facilities. As a result of the training delivered, service providers were better able to identify individuals they serve who have visual impairments, help them address basic needs related to vision loss, and help connect them with the resources available through the

Department. In this regard, the provision of in-service training served to both increase referrals to the Department and increase the capacity of other providers to better serve individuals with vision loss.

## CORE FUNCTION: LIBRARY SERVICES

**Description:** The lowa library for the blind and physically handicapped acquires, manages, and circulates information to eligible borrowers. Collections may include books, journals, data bases, videos, state and federal documents, and access to web sites.

Why we are doing this: To provide access to information to blind and visually impaired lowans in specialized alternative media so they can obtain or retain employment, pursue educational goals, and meet all other personal needs consistent with each individual's strengths, resources, priorities, concerns, abilities, capabilities, interests, and informed choice.

What we're doing to achieve results: The library produces and circulates books and magazines on digital media, in Braille, and in large print to eligible borrowers throughout lowa.

# Key ResultPerformance MeasureTargetResultNumber of Iowans Using Services6,5006,363

What Happened: The number of lowans using services in 2018 was 6,363. lowans who cannot read standard print gathered and used information from books, magazines, newsletters, educational, job-related, and personal materials to pursue education from kindergarten through advanced post-graduate degrees, acquire and maintain a wide variety of jobs, manage personal affairs (including medical and financial), participate in community activities and in the democratic process, and read for leisure and personal enrichment. They also received information on other services available to them through a variety of sources. The number of lowans using library services fluctuates each year and is dependent on public demand.

**Data sources:** The Department's automated circulation system.

Resources: Total spending for the library was \$1,291,577.

#### Services / Products / Activities of Library Services Core Function

**Service:** Circulation of library materials.

**Description:** The library maintains a collection of over 125,000 book titles and makes available to its borrowers over 150 different magazines. Because the library is a cooperating member of the National Library Service for the Blind and Physically Handicapped (NLS), its borrowers have access to all NLS services.

#### Results

Performance Measure	Target	Result
Number of items (books, magazines, and playback units) circulated.	250,000	319,784

What Happened: The library exceeded its circulation target by 69,784.

lowa's patrons continued borrowing more magazines and more digital books than the previous year. The increase in the use of BARD (the National Library Service's download site) and its mobile application contributed to the most significant increase in lowa patrons borrowing materials in all formats. Download and duplication on demand services contributed to increases in circulation. Locally produced materials (magazines, books, and "personal patron digital cartridges") continue to show increases in circulation.

Service: Access to downloadable books online through BARD (Braille and Audio Recording Download)

**Description:** BARD, Braille and Audio Download, includes the National Library Service's download site and mobile application. It allows lowa patrons to download materials in both electronic Braille and audio to their computers, tablets, mobile phones and other devices. Iowa's library contributes to the BARD collection by adding locally produced books and making them available to library patrons. BARD usage continues to increase and is another tool for patrons to access library materials.

#### Results

Performance Measure	Target	Result
Number of items downloaded from BARD.	40,000	36,582

**What Happened:** 36,582 items or materials were downloaded from the BARD service. The BARD service provides library patrons with another tool to access information and library materials.

**Service:** Production of materials in alternative media.

**Description:** Employment-related, educational, and leisure materials not already available in alternative media are transcribed for the collection and for patrons upon request.

#### Results

Performance Measure	Target	Result
Number of items produced in alternative media.	1,400	1,835

What Happened: Necessary documents were transcribed and produced in alternative formats and used by students from pre-school through postgraduate to continue their education; employed lowans were able to read work-related materials (e.g., handbooks, product brochures, memos, etc.) and thus remain competitively employed; reading-disabled lowans were able to manage personal, medical, and financial affairs independently.

The number of items produced in alternative media for 2018 was 1,835. This number can and does fluctuate from year to year as it is dependent upon patrons' needs.

Service: Instructional Materials Center (IMC)

**Description:** The IMC locates textbooks and other educational materials for lowa's K-12 and college students who cannot use standard print, and it locates job-related materials for employed lowans who cannot use print.

#### Results

Performance Measure	Target	Result
Number of educational and vocational requests filled by instructional materials center.	1,100	1,402
Number of vocational requests filled by Braille Production services.	35	20
Percentage of instructional materials center requests filled in a timely manner.	97%	99%

**What was achieved:** The number of requests for educational and vocational materials filled was 1,402. As a result, students and workers received the textbooks and work-related materials they needed in a format they can use, which allowed them to continue their education and maintain employment. The number of items produced by the IMC is dependent upon patrons' needs and requests.

# CORE FUNCTION: RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

**Description:** Provides all vital infrastructure needs necessary to administer and support agency operations.

Why we are doing this: To ensure effective administration of the Department for the Blind.

What we're doing to achieve results: In addition to exercising stewardship over resources and other administrative functions the Department is working on the replacement of two operating systems for the library's circulation processes and vocational rehabilitation case management.

# **Key Results**

Performance Measure	Target	Result
Number of reportable comments in the annual audit.	0	0

**What Happened:** The auditor released the state's single audit report on March 28, 2018 for fiscal year 2017. The Department was not cited for issues in the state's single audit report, although the auditor recommended improvements in internal control procedures.

**Data Source:** Annual audit report issued by Iowa's Auditor of State.

# Services / Products / Activities of Resource Management Core Function

Service: Department administrative services

#### **Results**

Performance Measure	Target	Result
Number of compliance issues raised by federal agency during monitoring visit.	0	0
Percent of compliance with Accountable Government Act.	100%	100%

**What Happened:** The National Library Service conducted an on-site monitoring review during August 25-26, 2016. The report issued pursuant to the review did not cite any compliance issues.

# **AGENCY CONTACTS**

This report is available at <a href="https://www.IDBonline.org">www.IDBonline.org</a>. Copies of the report can also be obtained by contacting Cheri Myers at 515-281-1293.

# PERFORMANCE PLAN FOR FY2019

Name of Agency: Department for the Blind

Core Function	Performance Measure (Outcome)	Performance Target	Prior Year Actual	Link to Strategic Plan Goal(s)
CF: Vocational Rehabilitation Services & Independent Living				
Desired Outcome(s):				
Increase productivity and independence of blind lowans	Ratio of average VR wage to average state wage as a percentage.	75%	73%	Department goal number one as stated in the strategic plan.
Services, Products, Activities	Performance Measures	Performance Target	Prior Year Actual	Strategies/Recommended Actions
1. Org# VOCR	Percentage of closures with an employment outcome after receiving services.	60%	50%	Vocational rehabilitation counselors mee regularly with rehabilitation teachers employment specialists, assistive technolog specialists, and orientation center instructors to
A. VR Services				maximize services for each client

				for peer interaction, mentoring and confidence building activities.
B. Adult Orientation and Adjustment Center	Results on skills and attitude assessments for students who have completed orientation center training.	80%	100%	Using the structured-discovery approach to instruction, provide comprehensive residential training to blind adults in the skills of blindness and the development of a positive attitude toward blindness.
C. Business Enterprise Program	Average net income to vendors	\$55,000/yr	\$65,480	Provide effective vending management assistance and continually seek new, profitable locations for vending facilities.
2. Org# VOCR/INDL A. Education and Outreach	Number of in-service training sessions conducted for community service providers	15	10	Increase the capacity of community-based service providers to meet the needs of older Individuals who are blind.
Core Function	Performance Measure (Outcome)	Performance Target	Prior Year Actual	Link to Strategic Plan Goal(s)
CF – Library services				
Acquires, manages and circulates information to eligible borrowers. Collections may include books, journals, databases, videos, state and federal documents, and access to web sites.				

Desired Outcomes:				
That lowans who cannot use standard print have access to printed materials of all kinds in alternative media.	Number of lowans using services.	6,500	6,363	Department goal number three as stated in the strategic plan.
Services, Products, Activities	Performance Measures	Performance Target	Prior Year Actual	Strategies/Recommended Actions
Org# LIBR     A. Circulation of library materials.	Number of items (books, magazines, and playback units) circulated.	250,000	319,784	Provide information and reader advisor services to patrons in person and by telephone; circulate books using automated system. Use qualified staff to perform functions.  Receive new equipment from National Library Service (NLS); ship machines and accessories to patrons upon request; receive and clean damaged and returned machines; repair damaged machines. Use staff, volunteers, and prison inmates to achieve goals.  Catalog new titles from NLS, locally produced books, and books purchased from other sources. Use automated system and professional librarian with cataloguing skills to perform work.
				Conduct public service announcement campaign; conduct public outreach activities including open houses, speaking engagements, conference

				exhibits, etc. Make initial contacts with all new patrons to retain or start services.  Purchase and distribute sacred texts upon request.  Label and ship books and video using automated system to generate mailing cards; receive returned books and magazines; inspect, rewind, repair, and re-shelve returned items; receive, label, inventory and shelve new books; excess and
				discard obsolete and unneeded volumes; inventory, shift, and maintain entire physical collection. Maintain proper inventory in automated system.
2.  Org # LIBP  Access to downloadable books online through BARD (Braille and Audio Recording Download)	Number of items downloaded from BARD.	40,000	36,582	As a National Library Service Network Library, provide information and assistance in to our library patrons in accessing BARD (Braille and Audio Recording Download) site and accounts. Include informational and account management for library patrons.  Library adds locally produced Braille and audio items to BARD.  Conduct awareness campaign to inform patrons of BARD access.
3.				Use staff, volunteers, and prisons program, record, duplicate, label, package, and ship

Org # LIBP  Production of materials in alternative media.	Number of items produced in alternative media.	1,400	1,835	recorded material to patrons and other requesting agencies.
				Use services of staff, volunteers, and prison program to transcribe printed material into Braille. Emboss, burst, thermoform, bind, label, and ship completed documents to patrons and other requesting agencies.
4.  Org # INMC  Instructional Materials Center and Braille Production services.	Number of educational requests filled by Instructional Materials Center.	1,100	1,402	Work closely with lowa schools and area education agency personnel to fulfill requests for students' textbooks in alternative media.
	Number of college and vocational requests filled by Braille Production services.	35	20	Fulfill requests from college students and employed persons for vocational and professional materials in alternative formats.
	Percentage of Instructional Materials Center requests filled in a timely manner	97%	99%	Using services of staff, volunteers, prison programs, and contractors, provide requested textbooks and classroom materials in specialized formats at the same time as sighted peers receive their materials.
Core Function	Performance Measure (Outcome)	Performance Target	Prior Year Actual	Link to Strategic Plan Goal(s)

CF – Resource Management				
(Enterprise or Agency)				
Provides all vital infrastructure needs				
necessary to administer and support				
agency operations. Key activities may				
include financial and personnel				
services such as payroll, accounting				
and budget; purchasing of goods and				
services; media management;				
information technology				
enhancement, management and				
support; staff development;				
leadership; planning; policy				
development; maintenance of				
physical infrastructure and				
governance system development to				
achieve results for lowans.				
Desired Outcome(s):				
Effective administration of the	1. Number of reportable	1. No	1. No	Supports all four goals in the Department's
Department for the Blind.	comments in the annual audit.	reportable	comments	strategic plan for the period ending June 30, 2019.
	2. Number of compliance issues	comments in		
	raised by federal agency during	the annual		
		audit		
	monitoring visit.	pertaining to		
		the		
		Department.		
			2. No	
		2. No	issues	
		compliance	noted	
		issues raised	from	

		by federal agencies.	federal agencies	
Services, Products, Activities	Performance Measures	Performance	Prior Year	Strategies/Recommended Actions
		Target	Actual	
Org# RESM     Department administrative services.	Percent of compliance with Accountable Government Act.	1. 100 % compliance with Accountable Government Act	100%	Achieve compliance with Chapter 8E and executive orders.